

MINUTES OF THE JUNE 4-6, 2018 MEETING OF THE STATE OF OHIO BOARD OF PHARMACY

Monday, June 4, 2018

10:05 a.m. The State of Ohio Board of Pharmacy convened in the Hearing Room, 17th Floor, of the Vern Riffe Center for Government and the Arts, 77 South High Street, Columbus, Ohio, with the following members present:

Megan E. Marchal, RPh, Presiding; Joshua M. Cox, RPh; Michael A. Moné, RPh; Curtis L. Passafume, Jr., RPh; Jennifer M. Rudell, RPh; Fred M. Weaver, RPh; Shawn C. Wilt, RPh; and Kilee S. Yarosh, RPh. Absent; Richard J. Newlon, *Public Member*

Also present were Steven Schierholt, *Executive Director*; Nicole Dehner, *Chief Legal Counsel*; Sarah Ackman, *Senior Legal Counsel*; Joe Koltak, *Senior Legal Counsel*.

10:24 a.m. The Board was joined by Assistant Attorney General Yvonne Tertel to conduct an adjudication hearing in accordance with the Ohio Revised Code Chapters 119. and 4729. in the matter of **David Haberland, RPh,** *Homeworth, Ohio.*

Mr. Weaver moved that the Board recess in order to consider the quasi-judicial matters in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code and the case precedent of *Angerman v. State Medical Bd.* (1990) 70 Ohio App.3d 346 and *TBC Westlake Inc. v. Hamilton Cty Bd of Revision, et al.* (1998) 81 Ohio St.3d 58. The motion was seconded by Mr. Moné and a roll-call vote was conducted by President Marchal as follows: Cox-yes; Moné -yes; Weaver-yes; Yarosh-yes; Rudell-yes; Passafume-yes; and Wilt-yes.

- **12:26 p.m.** The recess ended and the hearing was opened to the public.
- **<u>R-2018-325</u>** After votes were taken in public session, the Board adopted the following order in the matter of **David Haberland, RPh,** Newton, Ohio.

ORDER OF THE STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY

(Case Number 2018-1471)

In The Matter Of:

David Haberland, RPh 23811 Chagrin Blvd, Suite 227 Beachwood, OH 44122 (License No. 03-1-14966)



77 South High Street, 17th Floor, Columbus, Ohio 43215

The Matter of David Haberland, RPh came for consideration on June 4, 2018, before the following members of the State of Ohio Board of Pharmacy (Board): Megan E. Marchal, RPh, *Presiding;* Joshua M. Cox, RPh; Michael A. Moné, RPh; Curtis L. Passafume, Jr., RPh; Jennifer M. Rudell, RPh; Fred M. Weaver, RPh; Shawn C. Wilt, RPh and Kilee S. Yarosh, RPh. Absent: Richard J. Newlon, Public Member

David Haberland was represented by Robert Garrity. The State of Ohio was represented by Yvonne Tertel, Assistant Attorney General.

SUMMARY OF EVIDENCE

State's Witnesses:

1. Thomas Williams — State of Ohio Board of Pharmacy

Respondent's Witnesses:

1. David Haberland, RPh — Respondent

State's Exhibits:

1.	Notice of Opportunity for Hearing	04-12-2018					
2.	Request for Hearing	04-23-2017					
3.	Scheduling Letter	04-26-2018					
4.	Credential View Screen	No Date					
5	Narcotic Inventory Record	No Date					
6.	Destruction Log	No Date					
7.	Drug Inventory Tracking Report	03-22-2018					
8.	Statement from David H. Haberland, RPH	05-01-2018					
9.	Statement from Suzie Howell, VP of Compliance & Operations						
	for REM Corporation	05-03-2018					
10.	Statement from Ashley Roach, Pharm D.	No Date					
Res	spondent's Exhibits:						
Α.	Pro Contract and UDS Results	05-02-2018					
В.	Chemical Dependency Treatment documentation	05-10-2018					
C.	12 Step meeting attendance documentation	04-25-2018					
D.	Resume and letter from current employers	05-29-2018					
Ε.	Letters of Support	05-17-2018					

After having heard the testimony, observed the demeanor of the witnesses, considered the evidence, and weighed the credibility of each, the Board finds the following to be fact:

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. David Haberland stole oxycodone- APAP 10/325 tablets from his employer, Easterday Pharmacy, located at 1696 South Arch Avenue, Alliance, OH 44601, on multiple occasions.

- a. On or about March 8, 2018, using deception, he removed a stock bottle of oxycodone-APAP 10/325 tablets from the shelf of his employer, stole tablets and returned the bottle to the shelf. He then falsely documented inventory control and destruction records by documenting purposely broken tablets of oxycodone- APAP 10/325. He then manually edited the drug stock inventory records in an attempt to cover up the theft.
- b. On or about March 15, 2018, using deception, he removed a stock bottle of oxycodone-APAP 10/325 tablets from the shelf of your employer, stole tablets and returned the bottle to the shelf. He then falsely documented inventory control and destruction records by documenting purposely broken tablets of oxycodone- APAP 10/325. He then manually edited the drug stock inventory records in an attempt to cover up the theft.
- c. On or about March 17, 2018, using deception, he removed a stock bottle of oxycodone-APAP 10/325 tablets from the shelf of his employer, stole tablets and returned the bottle to the shelf. He then falsely documented inventory control and destruction records by documenting purposely broken tablets of oxycodone- APAP 10/325. He then manually edited the drug stock inventory records in an attempt to cover up the theft.
- On March 21, 2018, during an initial interview with agents from the Board, David Haberland denied any wrong-doing. However, on or about March 26, 2018, he made the Board aware he was obtaining services for treatment.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

- Such conduct as set forth in paragraph 1(a), (1)(b), and (1)(c) of the Finding of Facts Section, if proven, each constitutes a violation of Section 2913.02 of the O.R.C., theft of a controlled substance, a felony of the fourth degree, each violation punishable by a maximum fine of \$5,000.
- Such conduct as set forth in paragraph 1(a), (1)(b), and (1)(c) of the Finding of Facts Section, if proven, each constitutes a violation of Section 2925.11(A) of the O.R.C., Possession of a Schedule II controlled substance, a felony of the fifth degree, punishable by a maximum fine of \$2,500.
- Such conduct as set forth in paragraph 1(a), (1)(b), and (1)(c) of the Finding of Facts Section, if proven, each constitutes a violation of Section 2925.23 of the O.R.C., Illegal Processing of Drug Documents of a Schedule II controlled substance, a felony of the fourth degree, punishable by a maximum fine of \$5,000.
- 4. Such conduct as set forth in paragraph 1(a), (1)(b), and (1)(c) of the Finding of Facts Section, if proven, each constitutes a violation of Section 2925.24 of the O.R.C., Tampering with Drugs, a felony of the third degree, punishable by a maximum fine of \$10,000.
- 5. Such conduct as set forth in paragraphs 1 and 2 of the Finding of Facts Section, if proven, constitutes a violation of the following divisions of (A) of section 4729.16 of the ORC effective

as of April 6, 2017, each violation constituting a minor misdemeanor, each punishable by a maximum penalty of \$150:

- a. Engaged in dishonesty or unprofessional conduct in the practice of pharmacy, ORC 4729.16 Section (A)(2)(b); and/or
- b. Is addicted to or abusing alcohol or drugs or is impaired physically or mentally to such a degree as to render the pharmacist unfit to practice pharmacy, ORC Section 4729.16(A)(2)(c); and/or
- c. Violated, conspired to violate, attempted to violate, or aided and abetted the violation of any of the provisions of Chapter 4729...Chapter 2925. or 3719. of the Revised Code, or any rule adopted by the board under those provisions, ORC 4729.16(A)(2)(e); and/or
- d. Engaged in any conduct for which the board may impose discipline as set forth in rules adopted under section 4729.26 of the Revised Code, ORC Section 4729.16(A)(2)(I).
- 6. Such conduct as set forth in paragraphs 1 and 2 of the Finding of Facts section, if proven, constitutes a violation of each of the following divisions of Rule 4729-5-04 of the OAC as effective April 28, 2016, each violation punishable by a maximum penalty of \$500:
 - a. Violated any state or federal law or rule regardless of the jurisdiction in which the acts were committed, OAC Rule 4729-5-04(A); and/or
 - b. Violated...any of the provisions of Chapters 4729...3719. and 2925. of the Revised Code, or any rule adopted by the board under those provisions, OAC Rule 4729-5-04(B); and/or
 - c. Is addicted to or abusing alcohol, drugs or other chemical substances or impaired physically or mentally to such a degree as to render the pharmacist or pharmacy intern unfit to practice pharmacy, OAC Rule 4729-5-04(D).

DECISION OF THE BOARD

Pursuant to Section 3719.121 of the Ohio Revised Code, the State Board of Pharmacy hereby removes the Summary Suspension Order issued to David Haberland on April 12, 2018.

Pursuant to Section 4729.16 of the Ohio Revised Code, and after consideration of the record as a whole, the State Board of Pharmacy hereby suspends indefinitely the pharmacist identification card, No. 03114966, held by David Haberland and such suspension is effective as of the date of the mailing of this Order.

1. David Haberland, pursuant to Rule 4729-9-01(F) of the Ohio Administrative Code, may not be employed by or work in a facility licensed by the State Board of Pharmacy to possess or distribute dangerous drugs during such period of suspension.

2. David Haberland, pursuant to Section 4729.16(B) of the Ohio Revised Code, must return her/his identification card and license (wall certificate) to the office of the State Board of Pharmacy within ten days after receipt of this Order unless the Board office is already in possession of both. The identification card and wall certificate should be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested.

Further, after 18 months from the effective date of this Order, the Board will consider any petition filed by David Haberland for a hearing, pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Chapter 119., for reinstatement. The Board will only consider reinstatement of the license to practice pharmacy in Ohio if the following conditions have been met:

- 1. David Haberland must maintain a current address with the Board throughout the duration of the suspension.
- 2. David Haberland must enter into and adhere to the terms of a <u>new</u> contract, signed within thirty days after the effective date of this Order, with an Ohio Department of Mental Health and Addiction Services (ODMHAS) treatment provider or a treatment provider acceptable to the Board for a period of not less than five years and, upon signing, submit a copy of the contract to the Board office. Failure to adhere to the terms of the treatment contract will be considered a violation of the Board's Order and subject [Petitioner] to potential sanctions up to and including revocation of license. The contract must provide that:
 - a. <u>Random</u>, <u>observed</u> urine drug screens shall be conducted at least once each month.
 - b. The urine sample must be given within twelve hours of notification. The urine drug screen must include testing for creatinine or specific gravity of the sample as the dilutional standard.
 - c. Alcohol and Ethyl Glucoronide (ETG) must be added to the standard urine drug screen.
 - d. Results of all drug screens must be negative. Refusal of a drug screen or a diluted drug screen is equivalent to a positive result. Any positive results, including those which may have resulted from ingestion of food, but excluding false positives which resulted from medication legitimately prescribed, indicates a violation of the contract.
 - e. In the event of a negative diluted screen, a hair sample test must be completed at the cost of the David Haberland in a timeframe consistent with the drug lab's recommended policy, but in any event no later than 12 days after the negative diluted screen.
 - f. The intervener/sponsor shall submit reports to the Board, in a format acceptable to the Board, indicating drug screens and their results in a timely

fashion. Actual copies of drug screens shall be made available to the Board upon request.

- g. Attendance is required a minimum of three times per calendar week (Sunday through Saturday) on separate days, at an Alcoholics Anonymous, Narcotics Anonymous, and/or similar support group meeting.
- h. The program shall immediately report to the Board any violations of the contract and/or lack of cooperation.
- 3. David Haberland must attend 90 meetings in 90 days, meeting the following requirements:
 - a. David Haberland must attend 90 Alcoholics Anonymous, Narcotics Anonymous, and/or similar support group in 90 consecutive days;
 - b. Attendance at the meetings described in must begin on June 25, 2018;
 - c. A minimum of one meeting must be attended each day for 90 consecutive days;
 - d. David Haberland must submit evidence of meeting attendance to <u>legal@pharmacy.ohio.gov</u> no later than the 92nd day from June 25, 2018.
- 4. David Haberland shall not refuse an employer provided drug or alcohol screen. If the Board becomes aware of any positive drug or alcohol screen results that were obtained in the course of employment or any mechanism other than via the signed contract with ODMHAS, the Board shall treat these results as a violation of the Board's Order and request David Haberland reappear before the Board for possible additional sanctions, including and up to revocation of license.
- 5. David Haberland shall not refuse a breathalyzer or other drug testing requested by law enforcement during the duration of suspension. The Board shall treat any such refusal as a violation of the Board's Order and request David Haberland reappear before the Board for possible additional sanctions, including and up to revocation of license.
- 6. David Haberland must immediately report any violation of the terms of this suspension to the Board by contacting legal@pharmacy.ohio.gov. Failure to self-report any violation shall be treated as a violation of this Board's Order and will subject David Haberland to possible additional sanctions, including and up to revocation of license.
- 7. David Haberland must demonstrate satisfactory proof to the Board that she/he is no longer addicted to or abusing liquor or drugs or impaired physically or mentally to such a degree as to render her unfit to practice pharmacy.
- 8. David Haberland must provide, in the reinstatement petition, documentation of the following:
 - a. Compliance with the contract required above (e.g.-proof of giving the sample within twelve hours of notification and copies of all drug and alcohol screen reports, meeting attendance records, treatment program reports, etc.);

- b. Compliance with the continuing pharmacy education requirements set forth in Chapter 4729-7 of the Ohio Administrative Code as applicable and in effect on the date of petitioning the Board for reinstatement;
- c. Compliance with the terms of this Order.
- 9. If reinstatement is not accomplished within **three years** of the effective date of this Order, David Haberland must also show successful completion of the North American Pharmacist Licensure Examination (NAPLEX) or an equivalent examination approved by the Board.
- 10. Any reinstatement shall not occur until such time as any criminal intervention in lieu of conviction has been successfully completed.
- 11. Violation of any term of suspension, including but not limited to any violation of the contract signed with the ODMHAS or other approved treatment provider may result in additional action before the Board up to and including revocation of your pharmacy license.
- 12. Any violation of Chapters 2925., 3715., 3719., 4729., of the Ohio Revised Code, any administrative code violation or a violation of any other state or federal law will be considered a violation of this Order resulting in a hearing before the Board and may also result in criminal and/or administrative charges.
- 13. If David Haberland's employment is related to the practice of pharmacy, David Haberland must notify employer of the terms of David Haberland's suspension and this Board's Order.
- 14. Failure to complete the terms set forth in this Board's Order, or to petition for reinstatement within five years of the date of this Order, will result in the Board issuing a notice of opportunity for hearing to consider additional disciplinary action, including and up to revocation of David Haberland's license.

Mr. Weaver moved for Findings of Fact; Mr. Wilt seconded the motion and approved by the Board: Aye-7.

Mr. Moné moved for Conclusions of Law; Mr. Cox seconded the motion and approved by the Board: Aye-7.

Mr. Wilt moved for Action of the Board; Ms. Rudell seconded the motion and approved by the Board: Aye-7.

SO ORDERED.

<u>R-2018-326</u> Michael A. Moné moved that the Board adopt the following Resolution

Resolution: Technician Registration

The State of Ohio Board of Pharmacy has received nearly 22,000 applications for Pharmacy Technician registration; almost 19,000 technician applications have been processed. During April of 2018, the Board transitioned to a new statewide eLicense system. That transition has caused significant manual processing of the remaining applications. However, processing has also revealed a large number of applications still lacking required documentation to allow full processing. To provide clarity for employers and applicants, the Board adopts the following:

All technicians who submitted application materials for registration by 11:59 p.m. on May 11, 2018, may continue to submit any outstanding documentation and this documentation must be received by the board before 08:00 a.m. on August 17, 2018 or their license will be deemed abandoned in accordance with rule 4729:3-1-01 of the Administrative Code.

Notwithstanding any prior resolution approved by the Board, an application deemed abandoned as of August 17, 2018, prohibits the applicant from continued practice as any classification of technician and precludes employment as any classification of technician.

Pharmacy technician applicants subject to this resolution may continue to practice until 11:59 p.m. August 17, 2018, unless otherwise notified in a Notice of Opportunity for Hearing letter proposing to deny the applicant's registration. On August 18, 2018, all individuals working as a pharmacy technician or technician trainee must hold a valid registration issued by the Board.

This resolution replaces Resolution R-2018-297 that was approved on April 9, 2018.

The motion was seconded by Fred Weaver and approved by the Board: Aye-7.

- **12:27 p.m.** The Board recessed for lunch.
- **1:00 p.m.** The State of Ohio Board of Pharmacy convened in the Hearing Room, 31st Floor, of the Vern Riffe Center for Government and the Arts, 77 South High Street, Columbus, Ohio, with the following members present:

Megan E. Marchal, RPh, Presiding; Joshua M. Cox, RPh; Michael A. Moné, RPh; Curtis L. Passafume, Jr., RPh; Jennifer M. Rudell, RPh; Fred M. Weaver, RPh; Shawn C. Wilt, RPh; and Kilee S. Yarosh, RPh. Absent: Richard J. Newlon, *Public Member*.

Also present were Steven Schierholt, *Executive Director*; Nicole Dehner, *Chief Legal Counsel*; Sarah Ackman, *Senior Legal Counsel*; Joseph Koltak, *Senior Legal Counsel*; Erin Reed, *Senior Legal Counsel*; Jesse Wimberly; Eric Griffin, *Director Compliance and Enforcement*.

Steve Schierholt, *Executive Director*, presented a review of the Medical Marijuana Dispensary Application Process & Scoring. The Board then reviewed the Medical Marijuana Provisional License Allocation/Awards report.

The following list of Provisional Dispensary Licensee, awarded by district, were voted on and opened for discussion by Board members:

- <u>Northeast District 1</u> Mr. Weaver moved for approval; Mr. Moné seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Northeast District 2</u>- Ms. Yarosh moved for approval; Mr. Weaver seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Northeast District 3</u>- Mr. Wilt moved for approval; Mr. Cox seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Northeast District 4</u> Mr. Moné moved for approval; Mr. Wilt seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Northeast District 5</u>- Mr. Wilt moved for approval; Ms. Rudell seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Northeast District 6</u>- Ms. Yarosh moved for approval; Mr. Weaver seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Northwest District 1</u>- Note there were no viable applicants. Ms. Rudell moved not to approve applicants; Ms. Yarosh seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Northwest District 2</u>- Note there were no applicants.
- <u>Northwest District 3</u> Mr. Cox moved for approval; Mr. Moné seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Northwest District 4</u> Mr. Weaver moved for approval; Mr. Wilt seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Northwest District 5</u> Mr. Moné moved for approval; Ms. Rudell seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Northwest District 6</u> Ms. Yarosh moved for approval; Mr. Wilt seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Northwest District 7</u> Ms. Yarosh moved for approval; Ms. Rudell seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Northwest District 8</u> Mr. Weaver moved for approval; Mr. Cox seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).

- <u>Southeast District 1</u> Mr. Wilt moved for approval; Mr. Moné seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Southeast District 2</u> Mr. Moné moved for approval; Ms. Yarosh seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Southeast District 3</u> Mr. Weaver moved for approval; Ms. Rudell seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Southeast District 4</u> Ms. Yarosh moved for approval; Mr. Wilt seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Southeast District 5</u> Mr. Weaver moved for approval; Mr. Cox. seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Southeast District 6</u> Ms. Yarosh moved for approval; Ms. Rudell. seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Southeast District 7</u> Mr. Moné moved for approval; Mr. Wilt. seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Southeast District 8</u> Ms. Yarosh moved for approval; Ms. Rudell. seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Southwest District 1</u> Ms. Rudell moved for approval; Mr. Weaver seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Southwest District 2</u> Mr. Wilt moved for approval; Mr. Rudell seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Southwest District 3</u> Note there were no applicants.
- <u>Southwest District 4</u> Mr. Moné moved for approval; Mr. Cox seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Southwest District 5</u> Ms. Rudell moved for approval; Mr. Wilt seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Southwest District 6</u> Ms. Yarosh moved for approval; Mr. Weaver seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).
- <u>Southwest District 7</u> Mr. Wilt moved for approval; Ms. Yarosh seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).

 <u>Southwest District 8</u> – Mr. Weaver moved for approval; Ms. Yarosh seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0).

A full list of provisional dispensary licenses awarded is provided in attached Addendum to these minutes.

- **1:52 p.m.** The Board recessed briefly.
- **2:10 p.m.** The State of Ohio Board of Pharmacy convened in the Hearing Room, 17th Floor, of the Vern Riffe Center for Government and the Arts, 77 South High Street, Columbus, Ohio.

Mr. Cox provided the Medical Board PAPC update. President Megan Marchal re-appointed Mr. Cox for another term. Ms. Marchal was appointed as the Alternate.

R-2018-327 Mr. Griffin discuss the significant facts regarding the activities of Emily Willis, Pharmacy Technician Trainee. Mr. Moné moved that the Board summarily suspend technician registration. The motion seconded by Ms. Rudell and a roll-call vote was conducted by President Marchal as follows: Coxyes; Moné -yes; Weaver-yes; Yarosh-yes; Rudell-yes; Passafume-yes; and Wilt-yes.

Mr. Passafume provided the MMAC report.

Mr. Griffin provided the Compliance and Enforcement update.

Ms. Galante provided the Licensing Report

Ms. Ghitman presented on the following CE Provider Requests:

- Independent RX LTC, Patrick Howell, Centerville, Ohio. Pharmacy Manager Patrick Howell, RPH 03232918. Mr. Cox moved for approval; Mr. Weaver seconded the motion and approved by the Board: Aye – 6/Abstain-1.
- <u>Delaware Area Career Center, Delaware, Ohio</u>. Program Director Lindsay DeMent, CPhT 09304451. Mr. Passafume moved for approval; Mr. Wilt seconded the motion and approved by the Board: Aye 6/Abstain-1.
- <u>Tolles Career & Technical Center, Plain City, Ohio</u>. Program Director Lorie Haskell, RPH 03223285. Mr. Passafume moved for approval; Mr. Wilt seconded the motion and approved by the Board: Aye 6/Abstain-1.

Ms. Simon provided Legislative Report update.

Ms. Dehner provided Legal Report update.

Mr. Schierholt provided the Executive Director report.

R-2018-328 Mr. Cox moved for approval of 2019 Board Dates; Mr. Weaver seconded the motion. Motion passed (Aye-7/Nay-0)

Mr. Weaver moved that the Board go into Executive Session to consider the investigation of charges or complaints against a licensee, confer with Board counsel regarding a pending or imminent court action and to discuss matters required to be confidential by law pursuant to Section 121.22(G)(1), (3) & (5) of the Ohio Revised Code. The motion was seconded by Mr. Moné and a roll-call vote was conducted by President Marchal as follows: Cox-yes; Moné -yes; Weaver-yes; Yarosh-yes; Rudell-yes; Passafume-yes; and Wilt-yes.

4:36 p.m. Executive Session concluded and the Board recessed for the day.

Tuesday, June 5, 2018

9:00 a.m. The State of Ohio Board of Pharmacy convened in the Hearing Room, 17th Floor, of the Vern Riffe Center for Government and the Arts, 77 South High Street, Columbus, Ohio, with the following members present:

Megan E. Marchal, RPh, Presiding; Joshua M. Cox, RPh; Michael A. Moné, RPh; Curtis L. Passafume, Jr., RPh; Jennifer M. Rudell, RPh; Fred M. Weaver, RPh; and Shawn C. Wilt, RPh. *Absent: Kilee Yarosh, RPh; Richard J. Newlon, Public Member.*

Also present were Steven Schierholt, *Executive Director*; Nicole Dehner, *Chief Legal Counsel*; Sarah Ackman, *Senior Legal Counsel*; Joe Koltak, *Senior Legal Counsel*,

The Board was joined by Assistant Attorney General LaTawnda Moore to conduct an adjudication hearing in accordance with the Ohio Revised Code Chapters 119. and 4729. in the matter of **Anita McDonald**, **RPh**, *Cincinnati*, *Ohio*.

- **9:28 a.m.** The hearing ended and the record was closed.
- **R-2018-329** Mr. Moné moved that the Board table the decision and continue discussions when respondent can provide documents at a later date. The motion was seconded by Mr. Wilt and a roll-call vote was conducted by President Marchal as follows: Cox-yes; Moné -yes; Weaver-yes; Rudell-yes; Passafume-yes; and Wilt-yes. Subsequent to the tabling, Ms. McDonald provided the necessary documentation and as a result the Board issued the following Order.

ORDER OF THE STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY

(Case Number 2016-1623)

In The Matter Of:

Anita McDonald, R.Ph.

5060 Sanro Drive Cincinnati, OH 45244 (License No. 03-2-23614)

INTRODUCTION

The Matter of Anita McDonald came for consideration on June 5, 2018, before the following members of the State of Ohio Board of Pharmacy (Board): Megan E. Marchal, RPh, *Presiding;* Joshua M. Cox, RPh; Michael A. Moné, RPh; Curtis L. Passafume, Jr., RPh; Jennifer M. Rudell, RPh; Fred M. Weaver, RPh; Shawn C. Wilt, RPh.

Anita McDonald was present and was not represented by Counsel. The State of Ohio was represented by Latawnda Moore, Assistant Attorney General.

SUMMARY OF EVIDENCE

Petitioner's Witnesses:

1. Anita McDonald

Petitioner's Exhibits:

- A. Completion of ILC
- B. Certificate of Completion of Greater Cincinnati Behavioral Health's Aftercare/Individual Treatment
- C. Certificate of Completion of Greater Cincinnati Behavioral Health's Thinking 4 Change
- D. CRC Client Progress Report on 7/19/17
- E. CRC Discharge Summary
- F. Completion of Group Support Meetings done at Celebrate Recovery workshops
- G. List of completed CPE's

FINDINGS OF FACT

After having heard the testimony, observed the demeanor of the witnesses, considered the evidence, and weighed the credibility of each, the Board finds that Anita McDonald substantially complied with the terms set forth in Board's Order dated June 13, 2017.

DECISION OF THE BOARD

On the basis of the Findings of Fact set forth above, and after consideration of the record as a whole, the State of Ohio Board of Pharmacy hereby approves the reinstatement of the pharmacist identification card, No. 03-2-23614, held by Anita McDonald to practice pharmacy in Ohio subject to a period of probation for one year beginning on the effective date of this Order, with the following conditions:

1. Anita McDonald must submit quarterly progress reports to the Board (due January 10, April 10, July 10, and October 10 during her one year of probation) that includes a written description of Anita McDonald's progress towards recovery and what Anita McDonald has been doing during the previous three months.

- 2. Other terms of probation are as follows:
 - a. Anita McDonald may not serve as a responsible pharmacist.
 - b. Anita McDonald may not destroy, assist in, or witness the destruction of controlled substances.
 - c. Anita McDonald may not work in a pharmacy more than 40 hours per week or 80 hours over a two-week period.
 - d. Anita McDonald must not violate the drug laws of Ohio, any other state, or the federal government.
 - e. Anita McDonald must abide by the rules of the State of Ohio Board of Pharmacy.
 - f. Anita McDonald must comply with the terms of this Order.
 - g. Anita McDonald's license is deemed not in good standing until successful completion of the probationary period.
- 3. Anita McDonald must immediately report any violation of the terms of this probation to the Board by contacting legal@pharmacy.ohio.gov. Failure to self-report any violation shall be treated as a violation of this Board's Order and will subject Anita McDonald to possible additional sanctions, including and up to revocation of license.
- 4. Any violation of probation or this Board's Order may result in a Board hearing to consider alternative or additional sanctions under Section 4729.16 of the Ohio Revised Code, including and up to revocation of Anita McDonald's license.

At the conclusion of the probationary period, the Board will issue a notice of opportunity for hearing to Anita McDonald regarding the status of Anita McDonald's probation and whether Anita McDonald has successfully met all terms of probation and may be considered in good standing.

SO ORDERED.

- **R-2018-330** Mr. Weaver moved that the Board approve the May Board Meeting Minutes, as written. The motion was seconded by Mr. Wilt and approved by the Board: Aye-6
- **R-2018-331** Mr. Wilt moved that the Conference Call Minutes of May 30, 2018, be approved as written. The motion was seconded by Mr. Passafume and approved by the Board: Aye-6
- **R-2018-332** Mr. Weaver moved that the May Probation Committee Minutes be approved as written. The motion was seconded by Mr. Passafume and approved by the Board: Aye-6.

Mr. Garner gave the OARRS report.

Mr. Garner reported on OARRS Mandatory Use Compliance for Pharmacists.

- **10:13 a.m.** The Board recessed briefly.
- **10:20 a.m.** The recess ended and the hearing was opened to the public.

The Board conducted an adjudication hearing in accordance with the Ohio Revised Code Chapters 119. and 4729. in the matter of **James LeVan**, **RPh**, *Cincinnati*, *Ohio*.

Mr. James Levan was not present for the Board hearing but was represented by Counsel, Aaron Michel. The State of Ohio was represented by LaTawnda Moore, Assistant Attorney General.

- **R-2018-333** Mr. Weaver moved that the Board recess in order to consider the quasi-judicial matters in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code and the case precedent of *Angerman v. State Medical Bd.* (1990) 70 Ohio App.3d 346 and *TBC Westlake Inc. v. Hamilton Cty Bd of Revision, et al.* (1998) 81 Ohio St.3d 58. The motion was seconded by Mr. Moné and a roll-call vote was conducted by President Marchal as follows: Cox-yes; Moné -yes; Weaver-yes; Yarosh-yes; Rudell-yes; Passafume-yes; and Wilt-yes.
- **11:58 a.m.** The Board recessed briefly.
- **12:04 p.m.** The recess ended, the hearing was opened to the public, at which time the Board announced a settlement agreement was forthcoming in the matter of James Levan.
- **12:26 a.m.** The Board recessed for lunch.
- **1:55 p.m.** The meeting reconvened in the Hearing Room.
- **R-2018-334** Mr. Wilt moved for the Board adopt of the following Resolution:

Resolution: Michael A. Moné, RPh

WHEREAS, Michael A. Moné, BSPharm, JD, FAPhA, has served the citizens of Ohio with distinction as a member of the State of Ohio Board of Pharmacy following his appointment by Governor Ted Strickland in 2010; and his reappointment by Governor John R. Kasich in 2014.

WHEREAS, during his commendable term in this appointment, Mr. Mone maintained the highest professional standards and demonstrated the admirable traits of integrity, intelligence, and impartiality in matters concerning the profession of pharmacy; therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED that we, the Members of the State of Ohio Board of Pharmacy, in its one hundred thirty-fourth year, do hereby express our profound appreciation to Michael A.

352

Mone for his service and recognize him for his commitment to the health and safety of the citizens of Ohio.

The motion was seconded by Mr. Passafume and approved by the Board: Aye-7

- **R-2018-335** Mr. Moné moved that the Treatment Provider Parkdale Treatment Center be approved. The motion was seconded by Mr. Passafume and approved by the Board: Aye-7.
- **R-2018-336** Mr. Wilt moved that the Modifications to Outpatient Pharmacy Rules be approved. The motion was seconded by Mr. Passafume and approved by the Board: Aye-7.
- R-2018-337 Mr. Wilt moved to approve an extension of NetSmart's request for the Ohio Department of Mental Health and Addiction Services. The motion was seconded by Mr. Moné and approved by the Board: Aye-7.
- **R-2018-338** Mr. Cox moved not to adopt Spark Therapeutics' resolution of allowing re-dispensing of medication (white bagging). The motion was seconded by Mr. Passafume and approved by the Board: Aye-7.

Ms. Wai gave an overview on Duty to Report – Committee Formation, Objectives, Next Steps/Timeline. An update will be provided in August.

- **3:16 p.m.** The Board recessed briefly.
- **3:31 p.m.** The meeting reconvened in the Hearing Room.

Drug Distributor Rules were reviewed and discussed. The Board will revisit revisions.

4:14 p.m. The Board recessed for the day.

Wednesday, June 6, 2018

9:01 a.m. The State of Ohio Board of Pharmacy convened in the Hearing Room, 17th Floor, of the Vern Riffe Center for Government and the Arts, 77 South High Street, Columbus, Ohio, with the following members present:

Megan E. Marchal, RPh, Presiding; Joshua M. Cox, RPh; Michael A. Moné, RPh; Curtis L. Passafume, Jr., RPh; Jennifer M. Rudell, RPh; Fred M. Weaver, RPh; Shawn C. Wilt, RPh; and Kilee S. Yarosh, RPh. Absent; Richard J. Newlon, *Public Member*.

Also present were Steven Schierholt, *Executive Director*; Nicole Dehner, *Chief Legal Counsel*; Sarah Ackman, *Senior Legal Counsel*; Joe Koltak, *Senior Legal Counsel*.

<u>R-2018-339</u> Ms. Marchal announced the following Settlement Agreement has been signed by all parties and is now effective:

IN THE MATTER OF: Case No. 2017-1054

Mark Moore

1335 Camden Trace Beavercreek, OH 45434 License No. 03-1-19236

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF OHIO BOARD OF PHARMACY

This Settlement Agreement (Agreement) is entered into by the State of Ohio Board of Pharmacy (Board) and Mark Moore, for the purpose of resolving all issues between the parties relating to the Board investigation of Mark Moore's thefts of various strengths and numerous quantities of hydrocodone/acetaminophen. Together, the Board and Mark Moore are referred to hereinafter as "the parties."

JURISDICTION

- 1. Pursuant to Section 4729.16 of the Ohio Revised Code and the rules adopted thereunder, the Board has the authority to suspend, revoke, or refuse to grant or renew any license issued pursuant to Sections 4729.07 and 4729.08 of the Ohio Revised Code to practice pharmacy as a pharmacist in the state of Ohio.
- 2. Mark Moore is an Ohio-licensed pharmacist under license number 03-1-19236.

FACTS

- 1. On or about January 13, 2017, the Board initiated an investigation of Mark Moore, pharmacist license number 03-1-19236, related to Mark Moore's thefts of various strengths and numerous quantities of hydrocodone/acetaminophen.
- 2. On or about May 4, 2018 the Board sent a Notice of Opportunity for Hearing to Mark Moore, which outlined the allegations and provided notice of his right to a hearing, his rights in such hearing, and his right to submit contentions in writing.

WHEREFORE, the parties desire to resolve the issues relating to the above-referenced findings without resorting to further administrative or judicial proceedings.

TERMS

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein expressed, the parties knowingly and voluntarily agree as follows:

1. The recitals set forth above are incorporated in this Settlement Agreement as though fully set forth herein.

- 3. MARK MOORE PERMANENTLY AND VOLUNTARILY SURRENDERS TO THE STATE OF OHIO BOARD OF PHARMACY HIS LICENSE AND REGISTRATION TO PRACTICE PHARMACY, LICENSE NO. 03-1-19236, WITH DISCIPLINE PENDING.
- 4. Mark Moore agrees to immediately return his license and wall certificate to the Board, if the Board is not already in possession of both.
- 5. Mark Moore may never reapply for any license issued by the State of Ohio Board of Pharmacy pursuant to Chapters 3719., 3796., 4729., or 4752. of the Revised Code.
- 6. Mark Moore agrees never to be employed by or otherwise work in any facility or establishment licensed by the State of Ohio Board of Pharmacy.
- 7. Mark Moore agrees to pay all reasonable costs associated with the collection of any payment, and of the prosecution of any violation of this Agreement.
- 8. Mark Moore understands that he has the right to be represented by counsel for review and execution of this agreement.
- 9. Mark Moore agrees and acknowledges that this Board disciplinary action must be disclosed to the proper licensing authority of any state or jurisdiction in which he currently holds a professional license, including to the Board on renewal applications or applications for a new license.
- 10. Mark Moore waives an opportunity to be heard pursuant to Chapter 119. of the Ohio Revised Code and waives any right to an appeal.
- 11. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts or facsimiles, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument.
- 12. All parties to this Agreement understand that this document is a public record pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 149.43.
- 13. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties, there being no other agreement of any kind, verbal or otherwise, which varies the terms of this Agreement.
- **<u>R-2018-340</u>** Ms. Marchal announced the following Settlement Agreement has been signed by all parties and is now effective:

IN THE MATTER OF: Case No. 2017-2388

Jenice Watts

276 Las Lomas Drive Novato, CA 94949 License No. 03-1-31767

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF OHIO BOARD OF PHARMACY

This Settlement Agreement (Agreement) is entered into by the State of Ohio Board of Pharmacy (Board) and Jenice Watts for the purpose of resolving all issues between the parties relating to the Board investigation of failure to meet the continuing education requirements. Together, the Board and Jenice Watts are referred to hereinafter as "the parties."

JURISDICTION

- 1. Pursuant to Section 4729.16 of the Ohio Revised Code and the rules adopted thereunder, the Board has the authority to suspend, revoke, or refuse to grant or renew any license issued pursuant to Sections 4729.07 and 4729.08 of the Ohio Revised Code to practice pharmacy in the state of Ohio.
- 2. Jenice Watts is an Ohio-licensed pharmacist under license number 03-1-31767.

FACTS

- 1. On or about September 26, 2017, the Board initiated an investigation of Jenice Watts, pharmacist license number 03-1-31767, related to Jenice Watts's failure to meet the continuing education requirements.
- 2. On or about February 23, 2018, the Board sent a Notice of Opportunity for Hearing to Jenice Watts, which outlined the allegations and provided notice of her right to a hearing, her rights in such hearing, and her right to submit contentions in writing.
- 3. On or about March 7, 2018, Jenice Watts timely requested an administrative hearing, which was subsequently scheduled for June 4, 2018.

WHEREFORE, the parties desire to resolve the issues relating to the above-referenced findings without resorting to further administrative or judicial proceedings.

TERMS

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein expressed, the parties knowingly and voluntarily agree as follows:

- 1. The recitals set forth above are incorporated in this Settlement Agreement as though fully set forth herein.
- 2. Jenice Watts neither admits nor denies the allegations stated in the Notice of Opportunity for hearing letter dated February 23, 2018 however, the Board has evidence sufficient to sustain the allegations, finds them to violate Ohio's pharmacy law as set forth in the Notice, and hereby adjudicates the same.
- Jenice Watts agrees to pay to the State of Ohio Board of Pharmacy the amount of amount of \$500.00. This fine will be attached to your license record and must be paid no later than 30 days from the effective date of this Order. To pay this fine you must login to <u>www.elicense.ohio.gov</u> and process the items in your cart, in addition to a \$3.50 processing fee.
- 4. Jenice Watts must obtain, within 90 days from the effective date of this Agreement, 20 general hours of approved continuing pharmacy education and 4 hours in the topic of patient or medication safety, which may not also be used for license renewal. Copies of completed CEUs must be e-mailed to legal@pharmacy.ohio.gov.
- 5. Jenice Watts agrees to pay all reasonable costs associated with the collection of any payment, and of the prosecution of any violation of this Agreement.
- 6. Jenice Watts understands that she has the right to be represented by counsel for review and execution of this agreement.
- 7. Jenice Watts agrees and acknowledges that this Board disciplinary action must be disclosed to the proper licensing authority of any state or jurisdiction in which she currently holds a professional license, including to the Board on renewal applications or applications for a new license.
- 8. Jenice Watts waives an opportunity to be heard pursuant to Chapter 119. of the Ohio Revised Code and specifically withdraws her request for a hearing in this matter and waives any right to an appeal.
- 9. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts or facsimiles, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument.
- 10. All parties to this Agreement understand that this document is a public record pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 149.43.
- 11. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties, there being no other agreement of any kind, verbal or otherwise, which varies the terms of this Agreement.

<u>R-2018-341</u> Ms. Marchal announced the following Settlement Agreement has been signed by all parties and is now effective:

IN THE MATTER OF: Case No. 2018-1216 and Case No. 2018-1495

Dayton Pain Center, LLC

c/o Dr. Bhimavarapu K. Reddy 331 Sixth Avenue Sidney, OH 45365 License No. 02-2870000

And

Dayton Pain Center, LLC c/o Dr. Bhimavarapu K. Reddy 9000 N. Main Street Englewood, OH 45415 License No. 02-2870050

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF OHIO BOARD OF PHARMACY

This Settlement Agreement (Agreement) is entered into by the State of Ohio Board of Pharmacy (Board) and Dayton Pain Center, for the purpose of resolving all issues between the parties relating to the Board investigation of Dayton Pain Center operating without any license at two locations as a Terminal Distributor of Dangerous Drugs (TDDD) with a Pain Management Clinic (PMC) Classification. Together, the Board and Dayton Pain Center are referred to hereinafter as "the parties."

JURISDICTION

- 1. Pursuant to Section 4729.57 of the Ohio Revised Code and the rules adopted thereunder, the Board has the authority to suspend, revoke, or refuse to grant or renew any license issued pursuant to Section 4729.54 of the Ohio Revised Code.
- Dayton Pain Center, on or about February 22, 2018, applied for a TDDD License with a PMC classification at two locations: 331 Sixth Avenue, Sidney, Ohio and 9000 N. Main Street ("Sydney location"), Englewood, Ohio ("Englewood location").

FACTS

 On or about April 10, 2018, the Board initiated an investigation of Dayton Pain Center, related to Dayton Pain Center's operation of a PMC without any license between the dates of January 7, 2015 and February 22, 2018. 2. On or about May 11, 2018, the Board sent a Notice of Opportunity for Hearing to Dayton Pain Center Sydney location and the Engelwood location, which outlined the allegations and provided notice of its right to a hearing, its rights in such hearing, and its right to submit contentions in writing.

WHEREFORE, the parties desire to resolve the issues relating to the above-referenced findings without resorting to further administrative or judicial proceedings.

TERMS

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein expressed, the parties knowingly and voluntarily agree as follows:

- 1. The recitals set forth above are incorporated in this Settlement Agreement as though fully set forth herein.
- 2. Dayton Pain Center neither admits nor denies the allegations stated in the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing letter dated May 11, 2018; however, the Board has evidence sufficient to sustain the allegations, finds them to violate Ohio's pharmacy law as set forth in the Notice, and hereby adjudicates the same.
- 3. Dayton Pain Center Sidney location, License No. 02-2870000, agrees to pay to the OSBP the amount of amount of \$15,000.00. This fine will be attached to your license record and must be paid no later than 30 days from the effective date of this Order. To pay this fine you must login to <u>www.elicense.ohio.gov</u> and process the items in your cart, in addition to a \$3.50 processing fee.
- 4. Dayton Pain Center Englewood location, License No. 02-2870050, agrees to pay to the OSBP the amount of amount of \$15,000.00. This fine will be attached to your license record and must be paid no later than 30 days from the effective date of this Order. To pay this fine you must login to <u>www.elicense.ohio.gov</u> and process the items in your cart, in addition to a \$3.50 processing fee.
- 5. Dayton Pain Center agrees and acknowledges that this Board disciplinary action must be disclosed to the proper licensing authority of any state or jurisdiction, as required by any such state or jurisdiction, in which it currently holds a professional license, including the Board on renewal applications or applications for a new license.
- 6. Dayton Pain Center agrees to comply with all federal and state requirements related to Terminal Distributors of Dangerous Drugs, including but not limited to, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4729. and the Rules adopted thereunder, Chapter 3719. and the Rules adopted thereunder, Chapter 3715. and the Rules adopted thereunder as well as the "Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act," 52 Stat. 1040 (1938), 21 U.S.C.A. 301 and Chapter 21, Section 360 of the United States Code, and Section 207.20 of the Code of Federal Regulations. Any violation by Dayton Pain Center of the terms of one or more federal or state requirements may constitute sufficient grounds for further enforcement action related to any licenses

granted to Dayton Pain Center by the Board and will NOT discharge Dayton Pain Center from any obligation under the terms of this Agreement.

- 7. Dayton Pain Center agrees to pay all reasonable costs associated with the collection of any payment, and of the prosecution of any violation of this Agreement.
- 8. Dayton Pain Center understands that it has the right to be represented by counsel for review and execution of this agreement.
- 9. This Agreement is binding upon any and all successors, assigns, affiliates, and subsidiaries of the parties or any other corporation through whom or with whom Dayton Pain Center will operate.
- 10. Dayton Pain Center waives its opportunity to be heard pursuant to Chapter 119. of the Ohio Revised Code and waives any right to appeal.
- 11. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts or facsimiles, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument.
- 12. All parties to this Agreement understand that this document is a public record pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 149.43.
- 13. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties, there being no other agreement of any kind, verbal or otherwise, which varies the terms of this Agreement.
- R-2018-342 Ms. Marchal announced the Board's dismissal in the matter of Case No. 2018-1862 for Derek Sapone (License No. 03-1-32400)

Ms. Dehner led a discussion regarding DEA Waiver

- **10:00 a.m.** The Board recessed briefly.
- **10:06 a.m.** The meeting reconvened in the Hearing Room.

Ms. Dehner led a discussion regarding OBOT Criminal History Waiver

- **R-2018-342** Mr. Passafume moved that the Board approve OBOT Non-Physician Owner Waivers Approved by Subcommittee as presented. The motion was seconded by Mr. Cox and approved by the Board: Aye-7.
- **R-2018-343** Mr. Cox moved that the Board approve OBOT Non-Physician Owner Waivers not approved by Subcommittee as presented. The motion seconded by Mr. Passafume and approved by the Board: Aye-7.

- **R-2018-344** Mr. Moné moved that the Board approve the PMC Multiple RP Reconsideration as presented. The motion was seconded by Mr. Passafume and approved by the Board: Aye-7.
- **R-2018-345** Mr. Moné moved that the Board approve the Non-Academic Intern Hours as presented. The motion was seconded by Mr. Wilt and approved by the Board: Aye-7.
- **R-2018-346** Mr. Passafume moved that the Board approve the Attestation Review as presented. The motion was seconded by Mr. Weaver seconded and approved by the Board: Aye-7.
- **10:43 a.m.** Ms. Marchal administered the Oath of Office to President-elect, Fred M. Weaver.

Oath of President

I, Fred Weaver, as President of the state of Ohio Board of Pharmacy do solemnly swear to uphold the Constitution of the United States and the state of Ohio; to impartially enforce the laws governing the profession of pharmacy and the legal distribution of drugs in the state of Ohio; and carry out the responsibilities of the Board as mandated by the laws of the state of Ohio without bias or prejudice, so help me God.

Ms. Marchal administered the Oath of Office to President-elect, Shawn C. Wilt

Oath of Vice President

I, Shawn Wilt, as Vice President of the state of Ohio Board of Pharmacy do solemnly swear to uphold the Constitution of the United States and the state of Ohio; to impartially enforce the laws governing the profession of pharmacy and the legal distribution of drugs in the state of Ohio; and carry out the responsibilities of the Board as mandated by the laws of the state of Ohio without bias or prejudice, so help me God.

Revisions to the Drug Distributor Rules were discussed.

R-2018-348 Shawn Wilt moved that the Board approve the proposed rule packets, as amended during the discussion. The motion was seconded by Curt Passafume and approved by the Board: Aye-6

Ms. Dehner presented for discussion the Voluntary Surrender Process.

Ms. Dehner presented for discussion the Bar from Employment in Board Licensed Facility.

Ms. Dehner presented for discussion the Public Records availability.

The meeting reconvened in the Hearing Room.

R-2018-349 Mr. Passafume moved that the meeting be adjourned. The motion was seconded by Mr. Moné and approved by the Board: Aye-6.

 \sim

Fred M. Weaver, RPh, President

 Fred M. Weaver, RPh, President
 Plan

 Steven W. Schierholt, Esq., Executive Director
 8/13/18

Addendum – Full List of Provisional Dispensary Licenses

District	# of Licenses in District	County	Business Name	Economic Disadvantaged	Facility Address	Facility City
ORTHEAST-1	3	Lorain	GTI OHIO, LLC	NO	1920 COOPER FOSTER PARK ROAD	LORAIN
ORTHEAST-1	3	Lorain	NMG OHIO, LLC	NO	709 SUGAR LN.	ELYRIA
ORTHEAST-1	3	Lorain	AFS CULTIVATION, LLC	NO	603 CLEVELAND STREET	ELYRIA
ORTHEAST-2	5	Cuyahoga	GREENLEAF APOTHECARIES, LLC	NO	3865 LAKESIDE AVENUE E	CLEVELAND
ORTHEAST-2	5	Cuyahoga	GTI OHIO, LLC	NO	11818 MADISON AVE.	LAKEWOOD
ORTHEAST-2	5	Cuyahoga	GTI OHIO, LLC	NO	1222-1224 PROSPECT AVENUE EAST	CLEVELAND
ORTHEAST-2	5	Cuyahoga	GTI OHIO, LLC	NO	APPROXIMATELY 18607-18609 DETROIT AVE. EXTENSION	LAKEWOOD
ORTHEAST-2	5	Cuyahoga	CANNAMED THERAPEUTICS LLC	YES	10500 ANTENUCCI BOULEVARD, SUITE 200	GARFIELD HEIGHTS
ORTHEAST-3	3	Summit	GREENLEAF APOTHECARIES, LLC	NO	46 SOUTH SUMMIT STREET	AKRON
ORTHEAST-3	3	Summit	127 OH, LLC	NO	737 EAST NORTH STREET	AKRON
ORTHEAST-3	3	Summit	KDJOH, LLC	NO	1220 BUCHHOLZER BLVD, UNITS C/D	CUYAHOGA FALLS
ORTHEAST-4	3	Stark	GREENLEAF APOTHECARIES, LLC	NO	3840 GREENTREE SOUTHWEST	CANTON
ORTHEAST-4	3	Columbiana	FARMACEUTICALRX LLC	NO	1865 DRESDEN AVENUE	EAST LIVERPOOL
ORTHEAST-4	3	Stark	MOTHER KNOW'S BEST, LLC	NO	PARCEL #400887, LOT #5 WITHIN THE STEIN INDUSTRIAL PARK	CANTON
ORTHEAST-5	2	Lake	GREENLEAF APOTHECARIES, LLC	NO	30133 EUCLID AVENUE	WICKLIFFE
ORTHEAST-5	2	Lake	127 OH, LLC	NO	382 BLACKBROOK ROAD	PAINESVILLE TOWNSH
		Taurah - B				1112021
ORTHEAST-6	2	Trumbull	GREEN LEAF MEDICAL OF OHIO II, LLC	NO	2932 YOUNGSTOWN RD	WARREN
ORTHEAST-6	2	Mahoning	QUEST WELLNESS OHIO II LLC	YES	4323 MARKET STREET	YOUNGSTOWN
ORTHWEST-1	1	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
ORTHWEST-2	1	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
ORTHWEST-3	2	Lucas	127 OH, LLC	NO	1238 CONANT STREET	MAUMEE
ORTHWEST-3	2	Lucas	GTI OHIO, LLC	NO	3151-3157 W. SYLVANIA AVE	TOLEDO
ORTHWEST-4	1	Wood	GLASS CITY ALTERNATIVES, LLC	NO	1155 N. MAIN STREET	BOWLING GREEN
ORTHWEST-5	1	Auglaize	EAGLE DISPENSARIES 2, LLC	NO	502 NORTH DIXIE HIGHWAY	WAPAKONETA
ORTHWEST-6	1	Marion	VERDANT CREATIONS, LLC	NO	326 JAMESWAY ROAD	MARION
ORTHWEST-7	1	Sandusky	CANNAMED THERAPEUTICS LLC	YES	1800 EAST STATE STREET	FREMONT
ORTHWEST-8	2	Erie	OPC RETAIL, LLC	NO	2018 CLEVELAND ROAD	HURON
ORTHWEST-8	2	Erie	THE FOREST SANDUSKY, LLC	NO	1651 TIFFIN AVENUE	SANDUSKY
OUTHEAST-1	1	Jackson	BUCKEYE BOTANICALS LLC	NO	3 ACY AVENUE	JACKSON
OUTHEAST-2	1	Ross	VERDANT CREATIONS, LLC	NO	1641 N. BRIDGE STREET	CHILLICOTHE
OUTHEAST-3	5	Franklin	GREENLEAF APOTHECARIES, LLC	NO	111 VINE STREET	COLUMBUS
OUTHEAST-3	5	Franklin	127 OH, LLC	NO	1361 GEORGESVILLE RD.	COLUMBUS
OUTHEAST-3	5	Franklin	CANNAMED THERAPEUTICS LLC	YES	656 GRANDVIEW AVE	COLUMBUS
OUTHEAST-3	5	Franklin	VERDANT CREATIONS, LLC	NO	CASSADY AVENUE (PARCEL # 010-294448-00)	COLUMBUS
OUTHEAST-3	5	Franklin	HARVEST OF OHIO, LLC	YES	2950 N. HIGH ST.	COLUMBUS
OUTHEAST-4	3	Licking	VERDANT CREATIONS, LLC	NO	1551 W. CHURCH STREET PARCEL #054-246882-00.000	NEWARK
OUTHEAST-4	3	Licking	OHIO GROWN THERAPIES, LLC	NO	1246 N 21ST ST	NEWARK
OUTHEAST-4	3	Licking	WGB, LLC	NO	1150 NORTH 21ST STREET	NEWARK
OUTHEAST-5	2	Hocking	CANNASCEND ALTERNATIVE LOGAN, LLC	NO	245 WEST MAIN STREET	LOGAN
OUTHEAST-5	2	Fairfield	BCCO, LLC	NO	3560 DOLSON CT NW	CARROLL
OUTHEAST-6	1	Athens	HARVEST OF OHIO, LLC	YES	711 W. UNION ST.	ATHENS
OUTHEAST-7	1	Coshocton	OHIO CANNABIS CLINIC LLC	NO	23024 CR 621 SUITE 1	COSHOCTON
OUTHEAST-8	1	Washington	CANNASCEND ALTERNATIVE, LLC	NO	414 GREENE STREET	MARIETTA
OUTHEAST-9	2	Jefferson	CRESCO LABS OHIO LLC	NO	180 MAIN STREET	WINTERSVILLE
OUTHEAST-9	2	Jefferson	OHIO VALLEY NATURAL RELIEF LLC	NO	840 CANTON ROAD	WINTERSVILLE
OUTHWEST-1	3	Hamilton	CARE MED ASSOCIATES, LLC	NO	5149 KENNEDY AVENUE	CINCINNATI
OUTHWEST-1	3	Hamilton	GREEN RX, LLC	YES	8420 VINE STREET	CINCINNATI
OUTHWEST-1	3	Hamilton	PHARMACANN OHIO LLC	NO	5445 RIDGE ROAD	COLUMBIA

District	# of Licenses in	County	Business Name	Economic	Facility Address	Facility City
	District			Disadvantaged		
SOUTHWEST-2	2	Butler	127 OH, LLC	NO	PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NOS. L5400-032.000-034; L5400-032.000-036; AND L5400-032.000-041	VILLAGE OF SEVEN MILE
SOUTHWEST-2	2	Butler	CANNASCEND ALTERNATIVE, LLC	NO	300 NORTH MAIN STREET	MONROE
SOUTHWEST-3	2	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
SOUTHWEST-4	3	Montgomery	PURE OHIO WELLNESS LLC	NO	1875 NEEDMORE ROAD	DAYTON
SOUTHWEST-4	3	Montgomery	CANNASCEND ALTERNATIVE, LLC	NO	333 WAYNE AVENUE	DAYTON
SOUTHWEST-4	3	Montgomery	SCHOTTENSTEIN APHRIA III LLC	NO	5604 AIRWAY ROAD	RIVERSIDE
SOUTHWEST-5	1	Warren	THERAPEUTIC HEALING CARE II, LLC	NO	1525 GENNTOWN DRIVE, SUITE B	LEBANON
SOUTHWEST-6	1	Highland	DEBBIE'S DISPENSARY OHIO 4, LLC	NO	1088 N HIGH ST	HILLSBORO
SOUTHWEST-7	1	Greene	HARVEST OF OHIO, LLC	YES	4370 TONAWANDA TRAIL	BEAVERCREEK
SOUTHWEST-8	2	Clark	PURE OHIO WELLNESS LLC	NO	1711 WEST MAIN ST.	SPRINGFIELD
SOUTHWEST-8	2	Clark	CANNAMED THERAPEUTICS LLC	YES	0 RAYDO CIRCLE	SPRINGFIELD